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In 1845, North Carolina passed the necessary
legislation to establish a school for deaf, dumb
and blind children, the ninth state to do so. As
early as 1847, when the first buildings were being
designed, the planners recognized the need for a
library. A room designated “Library and Cabinet”
was included in the plans for the first administra-
tion building on Caswell Square in Raleigh.

Today, the library at The Governor Morehead
School, which is the current name for the school
for visually impaired youth of North Carolina, is a
well-equipped media center which not only
enriches the academic curriculum but also fills a
“public library” need for students and staff.

The school serves visually impaired and multi-
handicapped children ages five through twenty-
one from all over North Carolina. One hundred
and fifty-six are currently enrolled. Some of these
students are day students, but a larger propor-
tion are residential students who return to their
homes only on weekends. A large staff of class-
room and special teachers, counselors, adminis-
trators, nurses and houseparents completes the
population at The Governor Morehead School.
The library strives to meet the diverse needs of all
of these people. The campus, consisting of aca-
demic and administration buildings as well as
cottages, a central dining hall and a gymnasium
with indoor pool, is located off Raleigh’s Western
Boulevard near Pullen Park.

Many changes have taken place at The Gov-
ernor Morehead School since its beginnings as
“The North Carolina Institution for the Education
of the Deaf and Dumb and the Blind” back in
1845. The history and development of the library
closely parallels that of the school. In the begin-
ning, only white deaf and blind children were
admitted, but in January 1869 a black depart-
ment for deaf and blind was opened in a separate
location in downtown Raleigh, thereby increasing
the scope of the library population surveyed.

Just as the school changed over the years,
education of the blind has undergone changes.
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The founders of schools for the blind in the United
States turned to Europe for special appliances
and methods of teaching. In the 1830s, the com-
mon type of reading material in official use in
Europe was embossed or raised letters, simplified
to make them more readable. One advantage of
this method was that it could be read by sighted
teachers with no special instruction, Also, it was
contended that by using a type similar to that
used by the sighted, the blind would be less set
apart from others, This method had drawbacks,
however, and various raised dot codes similar to
the Grade 2 Braille code in use today were
adopted by the different schools in the United
States. In 1932, after a long and bitter contro-
versy, an agreement was signed by representa-
tives of the blind of Great Britain and the United
States that adopted the present-day English lan-
guage Grade 2 Braille.

In the early days of the school
books for the blind were scarce,
for the schools that had been in
existence longer than North
Carolina’s consumed the entire
output of books produced espe-
cially for the blind.

In the early days of the school books for the
blind were scarce, for the schools that had been in
existence longer than North Carolina’s consumed
the entire output of books produced especially for
the blind. During 1858-1860, special equipment
was installed in the North Carolina school's print-
ing department to produce raised letter books.
The shortage was eased further when the United
State Congress enacted legislation in 1879 appro-
priating funds for the education of the blind.
These funds were used to manufacture embossed
books at the American Printing House for the
Blind. In 1900, North Carolina’s General Assembly
granted an annual appropriation of $50.00 to the



school for the purchase of new books. Although
the appropriation was small, the library holdings
were gradually increased.

In 1893, the white deaf students were trans-
ferred to a special school in Morganton, but the
“Blind School” continued to grow in size and scope
and there became a pressing need for larger quar-
ters for both black and white departments. In
1923, the white department moved to the present
Ashe Avenue campus and a few years later the
black department moved to a large campus which
included farmland located on Garner Road near
Raleigh. It was not until 1977 that the entire
school was on one site once again and by that
time all of the deaf children were being educated
elsewhere.

During these years, the school library had
been growing and evolving. Reading materials in
Braille, large print and recorded formats were
being added to the collection. A graduate librar-
ian was hired in 1943 to organize the expanding
collection on a professional basis, and before long
the requirements of The Southern Association of
Colleges and Secondary Schools had been satis-
fied. A large new library wing was added to the
school building soon after World War II. Inter-
library loans between the libraries on the two
campuses were in effect until their merger in 1977
when the Garner Road campus, the former black
department, was given up.

Development of the card cata-
log enabled even the totally
blind students to use the library
independently.

The sudden growth spurt of media in school
libraries that occurred in the 1960s was felt at
The Governor Morehead School also. Tape record-
ers, phonographs, and movie and filmstrip projec-
tors, as well as other equipment and materials
were purchased by the library and circulated to
students and teachers. Other important changes
were taking place as the library holdings grew. A
card catalog of all library materials—print,
Braille, and audio-visual—was produced on
5" x 8" cards. These cards contained all of the
necessary information in large print on one side
with the same information in Braille on the other
side. Development of the card catalog enabled
even the totally blind students to use the library
independently. During this decade of change, “The
State School for the Blind and Deaf,” the school’s

second name, became “The Governor Morehead
School” in honor of John Motley Morehead who
had been governor of North Carolina when the
school was founded in 1845.

The Governor Morehead School Library of
the 1980s is an up-to-date media center with the
newest technologies available for the visually
impaired. Print materials are made accessible by
means of electronic reading devices such as
closed circuit TV reading machines and a Kurz-
weil reading machine. The CCTV or video visual
aid not only magnifies print but maximizes the
contrast and displays it on a TV screen. The user
can control the magnification to suit his needs.
The Kurzweil machine, on the other hand, scans
print material and reads it with a synthesized
voice.

A recorded encyclopedia with Braille and
print indexes facilitates reference work. The stu-
dent can find his topic in one of the indexes,
select the proper cassette and set the dials on a
special cassette player according to directions
found in the index, The cassette player then scans
the tape electronically to find the topic indexed.

“Talking” calculators are in great demand for
math classes. Students can solve complicated
problems and check their work much faster than
with the abacus, which is also a useful tool for the
totally blind.

During after-school hours students can be
found enjoying computer games in the library or
doing homework for computer classes. Many
computer programs can be used with a speech
synthesis system which makes them meaningful
for visually impaired students. Soon students and
teachers will be able to generate Braille copy by
means of a Braille embosser interfaced with a
computer. A typist who doesn't know Braille will
be able to key into the computer and, using a spe-
cial program, produce Grade 2 Braille.

The Governor Morehead School
Library of the 1980s is an up-to-
date media center with the
newest technologies available
for the visually impaired.

In many respects The Governor Morehead
School Library resembles other public school
libraries throughout the state. Teachers bring
their classes to do reference work or to learn
library skills. They come to watch programs on
the instructional TV channel and to check out
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books. A trained librarian and a technical aide are
on the job performing such diverse tasks as keep-
ing the Braille catalog up to date, videotaping
school projects, editing a newsletter, or providing
story hour for the younger children. The library is
also a valuable resource center for summer
school. A selected group of students from around
the state, not limited to those who attend The
Governor Morehead School for the regular ses-
sion, attend a five-week summer session for
enrichment. This may be their only opportunity to
use a library independently.

From a modest beginning in the “Library and
Cabinet” room in 1849 to an entire two-story wing
of the academic building equipped with the most

modern technology of the 1980s, The Governor
Morehead School Library has grown and con-
tinues to change with the times and the needs of
the school.
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ANNOUNCING

A NEW WAY TO MEET YOUR CONTINUING EDUCATION AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT NEEDS

NORTH CAROLINA CENTRAL UNIVERSITY
SCHOOL OF LIBRARY AND INFORMATION SCIENCE'S
OFFICE OF CONTINUING EDUCATION AND LIBRARY STAFF DEVELOPMENT

services

Needs Assessments — We help you or your organizarion derermine your confinuing educarion

Workshops — We conducr workshops on a wide range of ropics.
Courses and Institutes — We offer full-lengrh courses and special insfirures,

Microcomputer Laboratory — We offer hands-on training in the use of microcompurers in

For more information on our program and services, contact:
Duncan Smirh, Coordinaror
Office of Confinuing Education and Library Sraff Development
School of Library and Informarion Science
Norrth Carolina Central Universiry
Durham, N.C. 27707
phone: 919-683-6485
919-683-6347
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